
 

 
 

Note:  A work session will be held at 5:30 in the Boardroom to discuss the  
proposed FY 2014 budget. 

 
BOARD OF ALDERMEN 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 
 Tuesday, October 15, 2013, 7:00 pm 

City Hall Boardroom 
 

Next numbers:  Bill No.  2744 / Ord. No. 2714 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER and ROLL CALL 
 
2. CITIZEN INPUT 
 
3. MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of minutes for October 1, 2013 regular Board meeting  

B. Thousand Oaks 13th Plat Phase A and 15th Plat Maintenance Bonds for Curb & Gutter (Public Works) 

C. Acceptance of Thousand Oaks 13th Plat Phase A and 15th Plat Curb, Paving and Storm Public 
Improvements (Public Works) 

D. Accounts Payable (Administration) 

Please Note: All matters listed under “Consent Agenda” are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen and will be enacted 
upon under one motion without discussion. Any member of the Board of Aldermen may be allowed to request an item be pulled from 
the Consent Agenda for consideration under the regular agenda if debate and a separate motion are desired. Any member of the 
Board of Aldermen may be allowed to question or comment on an item on the Consent Agenda without a separate motion under the 
regular agenda. Items not removed from the Consent Agenda will stand approved upon motion of any Alderman, followed by a second 
and a majority voice vote to “Approve the Consent Agendas as Published.” 

 
5. ACTION AGENDA 

A. Agreement with Curious Eye Productions regarding the Future of City’s Public Access Channel 2 
(Administration) 

B. Amended Lease Agreement with Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce for Train Depot (Administration) 

C. Ordinance Reaffirming Franchise Tax on Gross Receipts to be Imposed Upon Electric Corporations 
Conducting Business within the City (Administration) 

D. Ordinance for Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, Townhomes at The National, 1st Plat – Applicant J3-Pandi, 
LLC, property owners (Community Development) 

E. Ordinance amending Chapter 405 of the Parkville zoning code to rezone 5.0 acres from County “AG” 
Agriculture District to city “R-1” Single-Family Residential District – Applicant Kevin Myers on behalf 
of Arville & Marion Paulette Myers, property owners (Community Development) 

F. Approving the 2013 Curb & Sidewalk & Gutter Project (Public Works) 

 
6. STAFF UPDATES ON ACTIVITIES 

A. Police Department 
 

Page 1 



 

General Agenda Notes: 
This agenda closed at noon on Thursday, October 10, 2013. With the exception of emergencies or other urgent matters, any item requested 
after the agenda was closed will be placed on the next board meeting agenda. Emergencies and urgent matters may be placed on an 
amended agenda only upon the vote of the Board of Aldermen. 
 

Page 2 

7. CITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Channel 2 & Website  
B. Community Land & Recreation Board (Ms. Driver) 
C. Environmental (Ms. Welch)  
D. Farmers Market (Ms. Driver) 
E. Financial Reports (Mr. Werner)                                                                              
F. Nature Sanctuaries (Ms. Driver) 
G. Policy (Ms. Welch & Mr. Werner) 

 
8. OTHER ORGANIZATION REPORTS 

A. Friends of Parkville Animal Shelter FOPAS (Ms. Snyder) 
B. Parkville Economic Development Council (Ms. McManus) 
C. Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce (Mr. Werner) 
D. Main Street Association (Ms. Lamer) 
E. Banneker School (Mr. Brooks) 
F. Park University (Ms. Snyder) 

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 
 
10. NON-ACTION ITEMS 

A. Downtown Master Plan 
 
11. ADJOURN 
 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2013 
Page 1 of 5  Draft until approved by the Board of Aldermen 

Minutes of the 10/1/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 1 of 5 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A regular meeting of the Parkville Board of Aldermen was convened at 7:05 p.m. on Tuesday, 
October 1, 2013 and was called to order by Mayor Jim Brooks. City Clerk Melissa McChesney called 
the roll as follows: 
 
Ward 1 Alderman Kari Lamer - present  
Ward 1 Alderman Diane Driver - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jim Werner - present 
Ward 2 Alderman Jackie Snyder - absent with prior notice 
Ward 3 Alderman Kendall Welch - present 
Ward 3 Alderman Chris Fisher - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Marc Sportsman - present 
Ward 4 Alderman Nan McManus - present 

 
A quorum of the Board of Aldermen was present.  
 
The following persons were also present: Lauren Palmer, City Administrator 

Sean Ackerson, Assistant City Administrator/Comm. Dvlpt. Director 
 Kevin Chrisman, Police Chief 

 Kirk Rome, Public Works Director 
 Steve Chinn, Acting City Attorney 
 Several Audience Members 
 
Media Present: Alan McArthur, Platte County Landmark 
 Jeanette Faubion, The Platte County Citizen 

 
Mayor Brooks announced an Executive Session was held in the Board conference room at 6:00 p.m. to 
discuss litigation and matters of attorney-client privilege per RSMo 610.021(1) and that no action was 
taken. 
   
2.  CITIZEN INPUT 
 

A. Chris Evans to announce Northland Childhood Hunger Initiative Event on October 13 
 Chris Evans spoke about the history and purpose of the Northland Community Foundation. She 

announced a Hunger Initiative Event scheduled for October 13 at Zona Rosa to raise money to help 
overcome childhood hunger in the Northland. 

 
3. MAYOR’S REPORT 

 
Mayor Jim Brooks noted that work on Platte Landing Park had started. 

 
4.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Approval of Minutes for the September 3, 2013 Regular Board Meeting   
B. Approval of Minutes for the September 9, 2013 Special Board Meeting  
C. Approval of Minutes for the September 23, 2013 Special Board Meeting  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA AS PRESENTED. ALL AYE; MOTION PASSED 7-
0. 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2013 
Page 2 of 5  Draft until approved by the Board of Aldermen 

Minutes of the 10/1/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 2 of 5 

 
5. ACTION AGENDA 
 

A. Authorization for the Mayor to Sign a Letter of Support to Recruit the 2016 Republican  
National Convention to Kansas City  
City Administrator Lauren Palmer said that the City was requested to write a letter of support to 
recruit the Republican National Convention to Kansas City. Several jurisdictions in both Kansas 
and Missouri had taken official action to support the regional effort which was perceived as an 
economic development opportunity of over $250 million. She also noted that the letter was a joint 
effort of support with the Economic Development Council, Main Street Parkville Association, 
and the Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce. 

  
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN A LETTER OF SUPPORT TO 
RECRUIT THE 2016 REPUBLICAN NATIONAL CONVENTION TO KANSAS CITY. 
ALL AYE; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
B. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan of the National Subdivision to allow a 

reduction in rear-yard setback for 6213 NW Heathery Way – Matthew and Amy Roberts, 
property owners 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Sean Ackerson noted the 
applicant requested a reduction of 11 feet in the rear-yard setback on Lot 37 of the National, 4th 
Plat to accommodate a new deck. The Planning & Zoning Commission approved the request on 
September 10 with a vote of 6-0.  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2741, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY UNIT 
PLAN OF THE NATIONAL SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW A REDUCTION IN REAR-
YARD SETBACK FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 6213 HEATHERY WAY, BE 
APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN ND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2741 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2741 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE 2711. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
C. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a 

reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 298 of the 6th Plat, generally known as 7802 Twilight 
Place – New Mark Homes LLC, property owner; Craig Archer, representative. 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Sean Ackerson stated that the lot 
was vacant and the applicant requested a reduction varying to 2.9 feet to accommodate a single-
family home accessory deck. The Planning & Zoning Commission approved the request at the 
September 10 meeting and concluded that the reduction had no impact on the abutting property, 
the home was in scale with the other properties, and drainage concerns would be addressed 
through the building permit process. The Commission approved the request 6-0 as submitted. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2742, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY UNIT 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2013 
Page 3 of 5  Draft until approved by the Board of Aldermen 

Minutes of the 10/1/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 3 of 5 

PLAN FOR THE RISS LAKE SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW A REDUCED REAR-YARD 
SETBACK FOR LOT 298 OF THE 6TH PLAT, GENERALLY KNOWN AS 7802 
TWILIGHT PLACE, BE APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE; MOTION 
CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2742 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2742 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE 2712. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
D. Ordinance amending the Community Unit Plan for the Riss Lake Subdivision to allow a 

reduced rear-yard setback for Lot 639 of the 11th Plat, generally known as 6100 Westwood 
Court – New Mark Homes LLC, property owner; Craig Archer, representative 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Sean Ackerson said the 
requested reduction varied from 1.5 feet to 7.5 feet, due to the irregularity of the lot, for a single-
family home and two accessory decks. The Planning & Zoning Commission approved the request 
at the September 10 meeting with a vote of 5-0, with the condition that the trees within the open 
space be preserved.  
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2743, AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMMUNITY UNIT 
PLAN FOR THE RISS LAKE SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW A REDUCED REAR-YARD 
SETBACK FOR LOT 639 OF THE 11TH PLAT, GENERALLY KNOWN AS 6100 
WESTWOOD COURT, BE APPROVED FOR FIRST READING. ALL AYE; MOTION 
CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2743 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL 2743 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE 2713. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 
 

E. Approval of Right-of-Way Agreement with Main Street Parkville Association for placement 
of trash cans on Main Street 
Public Works Director Kirk Rome, PE, noted that seven trash cans would be replaced along Main 
Street with no impact to the City budget and the old trash cans would replace others in English 
Landing Park. The Community Land and Recreation Board reviewed and unanimously approved 
the request. Rome believed that changes from the Downtown Master Plan could be managed and 
he worked on the agreement with the Main Street Parkville Association. 
 
IT WAS MOVED ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH MAIN STREET PARKVILLE 
ASSOCIATION TO PLACE SEVEN TRASH CANS IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 
ALONG MAIN STREET BETWEEN ENGLISH LANDING DRIVE AND 1ST STREET. 
ALL AYE; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2013 
Page 4 of 5  Draft until approved by the Board of Aldermen 

Minutes of the 10/1/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 4 of 5 

 
F. Accounts Payable A-967 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL A-967 AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING FUNDS FROM THE 
GENERAL FUND TO PAY SALARIES AND ACCOUNTS BE APPROVED ON FIRST 
READING. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL A-967 BE APPROVED ON FIRST READING AND PASSED TO 
SECOND READING BY TITLE ONLY. ALL AYE; MOTION CARRIED 7-0. 
 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN 
FISHER THAT BILL A-967 BE APPROVED ON SECOND READING TO BECOME 
ORDINANCE A-967. ALL AYES BY ROLL CALL VOTE. AYES: JOHNSTON, WELCH, 
WERNER, DRIVER, LAMER, FISHER, AND SPORTSMAN; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
6. STAFF UPDATES ON ACTIVITIES 

 
Police Chief Kevin Chrisman reminded the Board that October was Breast Cancer Month and noted 
the fountain was filled with pink dye. He also provided an overview of the crime statistics and the 
managed deer hunt count. 
 
Assistant City Administrator/Community Development Director Sean Ackerson provided updates on 
the Downtown Master Plan meetings and upcoming Planning & Zoning Commission items, noting 
the Downtown Master Plan would be discussed on October 8 with the Planning & Zoning 
Commission and October 15 with the Board of Aldermen. He also said the Planning & Zoning 
Commission would review a request to rezone five acres to Single-Family Residential District for a 
single-family home at the southeast section of Brink-Myers Road. 
 
Public Works Director Kirk Rome provided an update to current projects that included the Brink-
Myers retaining wall, Riverbank Stabilization Program, Highway 45 roundabout landscaping at The 
National, Ultraviolet Disinfection Project, Thousand Oaks 15th and 18th plats, stormwater 
improvements at Fifth and Main streets, Crooked Road Magellan pipeline crossing, and Platte 
Landing Park.  
 
Alderman Driver asked about the Alliance report and the City’s ownership of the control panel. Rome 
responded that the project had gone back out to bid because the original contractor backed out. 
 
Alderman Johnston commented on the weeded area along the river in English Landing Park and 
asked if special equipment was needed to mow closer to the river. Rome responded that he would 
speak with Parks Superintendent Tom Barnard.  

 
7.  CITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Financial Reports – Alderman Werner 
Alderman Werner said the City was doing well, revenues were lower than expected, and spending 
was better than planned. He commended staff for their work to manage the budget and hoped some 
end-of-year funds could be moved to the reserve fund. 
 



MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN REGULAR MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2013 
Page 5 of 5  Draft until approved by the Board of Aldermen 

Minutes of the 10/1/2013 Board of Aldermen Regular Meeting  
Page 5 of 5 

IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO ACCEPT FINANCIAL REPORT FOR MONTH-ENDING AUGUST 31, 2013. ALL AYE, 
MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
Nature Sanctuaries – Alderman Driver 
Alderman Driver noted the sanctuary was preparing for the annual ghost stories on October 26 at 
English Landing Park and information was provided on the City’s website. 

 
8. OTHER ORGANIZATION REPORTS 
 

Banneker School – Mayor Brooks 
Mayor Jim Brooks noted that Rosetta Scott received the Andrus Award for Community Service from 
the 2013 American Association of Retired Persons (AARP) Missouri and planned to donate the 
money to the Banneker School Foundation. He also said the project was progressing and 
approximately $65,000 was needed to acquire another property for an interpretive center, parking and 
restrooms.  
 
Public Works Director Kirk Rome reminded the Board the fall clean up was scheduled for October 
12-13 at the Damon Pursell Construction lot and information was provided on the City’s website. 

 
9. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS FROM THE BOARD 
 
10. ADJOURN 

 
IT WAS MOVED BY ALDERMAN SPORTSMAN AND SECONDED BY ALDERMAN FISHER 
TO ADJOURN THE OCTOBER 1, 2013 REGULAR BOARD MEETING AT 8:00 P.M. ALL 
AYE; MOTION PASSED 7-0. 

 
The minutes for Tuesday, October 1, 2013, having been read and considered by the Board of Aldermen, 
and having been found to be correct as written, were approved on this the fifteenth day of October, 2013. 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
_________________________ 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney – 10/09/2013 
 



ITEM 4B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 8, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 

Kirk Rome P.E. 
Public Works Director  

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE: 
Requesting the Board of Aldermen accept curb and gutter maintenance bonds for the 13th Plat 
Phase A and 15th Plat in the Thousand Oaks subdivision.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Thousand Oaks subdivision continues to grow, and the developer (David Barth) has 
completed the public street and storm sewer improvements in the 13A and 15th Plats. Mr. Barth 
submitted these curb and gutter bonds in the amount of $11,434 for the 13th Plat Phase A and 
$30,824 for the 15th Plat to cover any required maintenance for two years from the time the 
improvements are accepted by the City.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The acceptance of these bonds will have no budget impact. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Accept the curb and gutter maintenance bonds. 
2. Do not accept the curb and gutter maintenance bonds. 
3. As the Board deems appropriate. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends accepting these curb and gutter maintenance bonds. 
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen may accept public improvement bonds. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to accept the maintenance bonds for curb and gutter improvements in the Thousand 
Oaks 13th Plat Phase A and 15th Plat.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 
1. Maintenance bonds 
 



ITEM 4C 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 8, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 

Kirk Rome P.E. 
Public Works Director  

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE: 
Request for approval to accept the public street and storm sewer improvements for the 13A and 
15th Plats of the Thousand Oaks subdivision. These are public streets located within the Parkville 
City Limits. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Thousand Oaks subdivision continues to grow, and the developer (David Barth) has 
completed the public street and storm sewer improvements in the 13A and 15th Plats. Mr. Barth 
requested that these improvements be accepted by the City. The improvements were inspected 
by City staff and an inspector from RTE Technologies and determined to meet all applicable city 
codes and standards. Maintenance Bonds covering any repairs for two years beyond the date of 
acceptance have been submitted, and acceptance is part of the meeting agenda for the curbs. 
The bonds for the paving and storm sewers have already been accepted.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The acceptance of these public improvements will have no immediate budget impact; however, it 
will add to future street maintenance responsibilities. These streets will add a minor amount of 
additional work to the City’s winter snow and ice clearing operations. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Accept the public improvements. 
2. Do not accept the public improvements. 
3. As the Board deems appropriate. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends accepting these street and storm sewer public improvements. 
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen may accept public improvements. 
 

SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to accept the public street and storm sewer improvements for Thousand Oaks 13A and 
15th Plats.  
 



ITEM 4D 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 10, 2013 
 

Prepared By: 
 

Tim Blakeslee 
Assistant to the City Administrator 

Reviewed By: 
 
Matthew Chapman 
Finance/Human Resources Director 
 

ISSUE: 
Approval of Accounts Payable Invoices, Payroll Expenditures, Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) 
Payments, Insurance Payments, and 1st of the Month Checks from 9/26/2013 - 10/11/2013. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Attached are the statements of approved payments, per the City’s Purchasing Policy, for the 
period from September 26, 2013, through October 11, 2013. All disbursements must be reviewed 
and approved by the Board of Aldermen prior to the release of City funds. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Accounts Payable $ 399,283.51 
Payroll $ 50,627.14 
ETF Payments $ N/A 
Insurance Payments $ 2,447.75 
1st of the Month $ N/A 

TOTAL $ 452,358.40 
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the release of funds 
2. Deny the release of funds and provide further direction to City Administration.  
3. Deny any portion of the release of funds and provide further direction to City Administration.  
4. The Board of Aldermen could deny the request to approve the policy report as set forth.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends the release of funds as summarized in the attached statements.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
 
I move to appropriate $452,663.40 of city funds to pay salaries and accounts. 
 
ATTACHMENT/S: 
1. Accounts Payable 
2. Insurance Payments 
3. Payroll 

 





































ITEM 5A 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 7, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
Lauren Palmer  
City Administrator  

Reviewed By: 
Sean Ackerson 
Community Development Director/Assistant 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE: 
Approve a proposal from Curious Eye Productions regarding the future of the City’s public 
access channel (Channel 2).  
 
BACKGROUND:  
Curious Eye Productions has been involved in the management of Channel 2 since 2004. In 
light of the challenging fiscal conditions, earlier this year Curious Eye was directed to scale back 
station operations to approximately half of the annual budget of $34,950. Curious Eye has 
documented that this level of funding is inadequate to maintain the overall function, personnel, 
and equipment of a cable public access channel. Without significant additional investment, the 
City of Parkville is not positioned to realize the full potential of Channel 2 in terms of reliable, 
rich, diverse programming on a 24/7/365 basis. 
 
The City Administrator, in consultation with Curious Eye, recommends abandoning the Channel 
2 broadcast and converting to an entirely web-based solution for broadcasting public meetings. 
This decision would redirect limited City resources toward the primary objective of recording and 
broadcasting public meetings. For the first time, all Parkville residents, regardless of cable 
service provider, would have online access to public meetings (Board of Aldermen and Planning 
Commission) via live streaming and storage.  
 
The concept of converting to a live stream broadcast was first reviewed and approved by the 
Finance Committee on July 30, 2012. However, that proposal was for 24-7 streaming, and the 
effort was abandoned after numerous technology problems began to drive up the cost. Curious 
Eye proposes a more feasible transition that will feature limited live streaming (during public 
meetings only) with storage of past meetings for on-demand viewing. Services would be 
provided for an hourly fee of $75, not to exceed a maximum amount of $2,400 (32 hours). The 
work includes researching the best provider and equipment to support the service, establishing 
the live streaming site, reconfiguring the control room and audiovisual system for optimal 
function, and training staff on proper use of the system. The transition would also require special 
equipment to support live streaming (video card, cables, connectors, etc.). Authorization is 
recommended for equipment purchases in a maximum amount not to exceed $1,250. 
 
Once the transition is complete, Curious Eye would continue to manage and operate the 
system, including hiring and training all production personnel to film and broadcast meetings. 
Curious Eye’s production oversight services would be billed at $75 per hour in a maximum 
amount not to exceed $750 per month (10 hours). Production assistant compensation would be 
billed at a flat rate of $50 per meeting (estimated at $150 per month). The City would have 
annual subscription costs for the live streaming and online storage service of approximately 
$600 per year. A subscription service is recommended in lieu of a free service in order to avoid 
uncontrolled advertisements on public meeting broadcasts. City Administration would also 
recommend maintaining a small annual budget for routine supplies and maintenance costs.  
 



ITEM 5A 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

BUDGET IMPACT:  
The initial one-time transition costs for converting to a web-based live streaming service will not 
exceed $3,650 (personnel and equipment). Adequate funds are available in the General Fund 
(10) - Channel 2 (540) account to absorb the start-up costs in 2013. In addition, the City 
received a reimbursement from Curious Eye of $511.59 for faulty equipment that was returned 
to the manufacturer. This amount may be used to offset the start-up costs. Following transition, 
ongoing maintenance and production costs for the online broadcasts would be approximately 
$980 per month ($11,800 per year). In 2013, the City budgeted $34,950 for Channel 2 services, 
so the recommended transition represents a considerable cost savings.   
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Approve an Agreement with Curious Eye Productions to abandon the Channel 2 
broadcast and transition to a live web streaming format.  

2. Maintain the status quo and continue to support minimal programming on Channel 2.  
3. Allocate additional resources to maintain the Channel 2 broadcast and expand 

programming.  
4. Provide direction to City Administration to meet the desires of the Board of Aldermen.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Aldermen authorize an agreement with Curious Eye 
Productions to facilitate the transition from cable broadcasts to live web streaming of public 
meetings.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
On September 23, 2013, the Finance Committee, on a vote of 5-0, authorized City 
Administration to negotiate an agreement with Curious Eye Productions to facilitate the 
transition from cable broadcasts to live web streaming of public meetings, and to recommend 
the same to the Board of Aldermen.  
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
I move to approve the agreement with Curious Eye Productions to facilitate the transition from 
cable broadcasts to live web streaming of public meetings.  
 
POLICY: 
The Purchasing Policy (Resolution #02-01-13) requires the Board of Aldermen to approve 
purchases in excess of $10,000 upon recommendation of the Finance Committee.   
 
ATTACHMENT: 

1. Agreement 
 



ITEM 5A 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 7 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Channel 2 Contract

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted By: 
 

 
1028 West Street, Parkville, Missouri 64152 
Office: 816-584-9995  Fax: 816-584-9996 
www.curiouseye.tv  
 
 
 
Date: October 7, 2013 

http://www.curiouseye.tv/














ITEM 5B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 9, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
Lauren Palmer  
City Administrator  

Reviewed By: 
Melissa McChesney 
City Clerk 
 

ISSUE: 
Approve an Amended Lease Agreement with the Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce for the 
Parkville Train Depot 
 
BACKGROUND:  
In May 2005, the City entered into a lease agreement with the Parkville Area Chamber of 
Commerce for the Parkville Train Depot. In exchange for office space, the Chamber maintains 
regular public hours for a visitor center and the Depot Railroad Museum and handles light 
cleaning of the facility. The City is responsible for repairs, improvements and utility costs.  
 
In August 2012, the lease agreement was amended to reduce the monthly user fee from $550 
per month to $450 per month through the end of 2013. According to the lease terms, the 
monthly fee is set to return to $600 per month on January 1, 2014. The Chamber requests that it 
continue to utilize the facility for $400 per month. The Chamber argues that it does not have 
adequate resources to fund $7,200 of annual office rent charges and to achieve the other 
objectives of the Chamber. In addition, the Chamber asks that it be allowed to maintain flexible 
office hours and accommodate visitors as available or by appointment. The number of people 
who visit the museum averages less than one a week. If the museum is closed, City 
Administration recommends that this be done in coordination with the City to ensure proper 
disposal of the collection.    
 
The Chamber’s presence in the Depot is a mutually beneficial public-private partnership. The 
City benefits from having a trusted entity ensure the basic upkeep of this iconic community 
asset and keep it available, albeit at limited times, for a visitor center for the public. Due to its 
organizational mission, the Chamber is a good partner for providing this service.  
 
Due to the age and poor insulation of the building, the City incurs significant costs for water and 
electric utilities. The City spent over $8,000 on utilities in 2012, and costs are projected to 
exceed that amount in 2013. It is estimated that as much as 50% of utility costs are associated 
with the Spirit Fountain. Therefore, if the building were vacated, the City may reduce utility costs 
by as little as 30%. The building is in need of a new roof, at which time additional insulation 
could be applied to help reduce electric bills (estimated total cost of $25,000). City 
Administration will evaluate other options, such as immediately applying the insulation or 
pursuing an energy efficiency loan.  
 
The term of the new lease is through December 31, 2014. This will allow additional time to 
evaluate the maintenance needs of the Depot and determine if other use(s) are better suited for 
the space. No informal interest by other parties has been expressed at this time. The building 
has unique challenges as an office space, notably proximity to the railroad tracks (noise) and 
high utility costs. The City may be able to convert the building for private event rental space. Its 
current configuration would only accommodate small groups, and additional staff or contract 
resources would be needed to manage the associated rental and maintenance needs.  
 



ITEM 5B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 

 

 

BUDGET IMPACT:  
The existing lease agreement with the Chamber authorizes the following monthly user fee 
schedule through the termination date of the agreement, which is December 31, 2014. 
  

September 1, 2012 – December 31, 2013 - $450 per month 
 January 1, 2014 – December 31, 2014 - $600 per month 
 
The City would forgo $2,400 of revenues annually by approving the revised lease agreement; 
although the Chamber has stated it will likely terminate the existing lease if the fee is not 
reduced. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  

1. Approve an amended lease agreement to reduce the monthly user fee to $400 per 
month.  

2. Take no action, thereby insisting that the Chamber honor the existing lease agreement 
through December 31, 2014.  

3. Direct City Administration to solicit proposals for alternative tenants and/or uses for the 
Depot.  

4. Provide other direction to City Administration to meet the desires of the Board of 
Aldermen.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Aldermen approve an amended lease agreement for the 
Depot with the Parkville Area Chamber of Commerce to reduce the monthly user fee to $400 
per month and to authorize the closure of the Railroad Museum, and recommend to the same to 
the Board of Aldermen.  
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
At the meeting on October 7, 2013, the Finance Committee, on a vote of 5-0, approved the 
amended lease agreement.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
I move to approve the proposed amended lease agreement with the Parkville Area Chamber of 
Commerce for the Parkville Train Depot.  
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen must approve all sale and lease agreements for City property.  
 
ATTACHMENT: 

1. Proposed Amended Lease 
 



ITEM 5B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Page 1 of 3 

AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PARKVILLE AND THE PARKVILLE AREA 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

FOR THE CHAMBER’S USE OF CERTAIN AREAS OF THE TRAIN DEPOT 
 
This Agreement entered into this 15th day of October, 2013 by and between the Parkville Area 
Chamber of Commerce, hereinafter referred to as “Chamber” and the City of Parkville, Missouri, 
hereinafter referred to as “City” for the Chamber’s use of certain areas of the Parkville Train Depot, 
hereinafter referred to as “Depot.”  
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2191 approved by the City Board of Aldermen on May 3, 2005, 
authorized an agreement with the Chamber for the use of the Depot; and 
 
WHEREAS, C/A Ordinance No. 240 approved on November 20, 2007, approved a minor change to 
the original agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, C/A Ordinance No. 316 approved on April 20, 2010, approved a new lease agreement 
which superseded all previous agreements; and 
 
WHEREAS, C/A Ordinance No. 407 approved on August 7, 2012, approved a change to the fee 
schedule of the lease agreement to reduce the monthly user fee to $450 per month from September 1, 
2012 to December 31, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Chamber desire to enter into a new lease agreement for the Depot. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City and Chamber agree that this agreement supersedes all previous 
agreements between the City and Chamber regarding the use of the Depot, and both parties agree as 
follows: 
 
THE CITY HEREBY AGREES TO PROVIDE: 

A. All repairs and improvements to the Depot deemed necessary in the City’s sole discretion. 
B. Two door keys, one for the use of the principal Chamber staff person, and the other for the 

use of the Chamber president. These keys shall not be given to others except by prior 
arrangement with the City.  

C. A dumpster outside the building and regular trash pickup.   
D. Provision for sewer, water, and electric utilities at the City’s expense.  
E. Provision for rodent control as needed.  
F. A cleaning service one time per month at the city’s expense.  
G. The Chamber shall have license to use areas of the Depot as follows: 

a. Reception Area. (Originally the “ladies waiting room”) This room shall serve as the 
main entrance to the Depot.  

b. Common Area. (Originally the “men’s waiting room”) This area shall be used as a 
common area for those using any of the other areas. The restroom shall be open to the 
public during any time the Depot is open and staffed by the Chamber.  



ITEM 5B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Page 2 of 3 

c. Meeting Room. (Originally the “baggage room”) This room shall be used as a 
conference room. The Chamber will have preferential use of the space for its own 
meetings and purposes, but shall also make the space available to the City and other 
community groups at no charge, subject to first-come, first-served availability. 
Reservations for the space will be handled by the Chamber. The Chamber is not 
responsible for set-up or clean-up of meetings held by others.  

d. Middle Room. (Originally the “Station Master’s Room”) This room shall be used 
exclusively by the Chamber of Commerce to house the working office for Chamber 
staff and/or volunteers. The Chamber may lock the door for security reasons; 
however, a copy of the key shall be maintained by the City. 

 
THE CHAMBER SHALL PROVIDE: 

A. Staff person(s) who will be in the office periodically throughout the week. The Chamber is 
not obligated to maintain regular office hours, but must accommodate drop-in visitors to 
access the restroom and available promotional materials about Parkville. 

B. Prompt reporting to the City of any significant repair and maintenance issues that need to be 
addressed by the City.  

C. Promotional materials provided by Chamber members or others to distribute to visitors to 
promote Parkville.  

D. A prominently displayed sign on the main entrance to the Depot to indicate the expected time 
of return for staff person(s) and a phone number to contact to schedule access to the Depot by 
appointment.  

E. Daily light cleaning of the Chamber office area. If the Meeting Room is used by the 
Chamber, Chamber staff shall return tables and chairs to the proper places, clean the coffee 
pot, remove and appropriately discard all trash, and generally return the Meeting Room to a 
clean and presentable condition. Large amounts of trash should be deposited in the dumpster.  

F. Its own furniture, equipment, office supplies, telephone, and internet.  
G. Payment to the City of a $450 monthly user fee on or before the first day of each month, 

commencing on November 1, 2013. The monthly user fee shall convert to $400 per month, 
effective January 1, 2014.  

 
ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS: 

A. The Chamber is under no obligation to continue to operate the Railroad Museum. If the 
Chamber chooses to discontinue operation of the Museum, the Chamber will work 
collaboratively with the City to properly dispose of museum assets by returning items “on 
loan” to original owners. The Chamber will continue to display railroad pictures and other 
appropriate artifacts in common areas of the Depot to preserve the historic character of the 
facility.  

B. The Parking Area associated with the Depot is public parking. This parking shall not be 
restricted for Chamber events or members only without prior approval from the City. 

C. The Chamber is allowed to sell only items that directly support Chamber fundraising 
projects. Retail sales of additional products require approval from the City.  



ITEM 5B 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Page 3 of 3 

D. The Chamber shall be the single licensee or tenant of the Depot unless otherwise approved by 
the Chamber and the City. This agreement will be reviewed and modified, as needed, if any 
additional licensees or tenants are proposed users of the Depot by either party.  

E. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this agreement, this agreement shall terminate and 
neither party shall have any further rights or obligations under this agreement on the date that 
is thirty (30) days following the delivery of written notice by either the City or the Chamber 
to the other party of its election to terminate the agreement.  

F. If either party fails to adhere to the provisions of this agreement, the other party may provide 
a sixty (60) day notice of default with an opportunity to cure. If the condition causing default 
is not corrected within sixty (60) days, the agreement will automatically terminate.  

G. This agreement is effective until December 31, 2014.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of 
the date first above written. 

CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 
 

__________________________ 
James C. Brooks, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

__________________________ 
Melissa McChesney, City Clerk 

 

PARKVILLE AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 

_________________________ 
 Audra Heller, President 

 
 



ITEM 5C 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5C - Tariff Reaffirmation\5C - app summary - Tariff reaffirmation.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 9, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE:   
Ordinance reaffirming the gross receipts tax / franchise fee to be imposed upon gas, electric 
and water corporations conducting business within the city and matters related thereto.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City currently imposes a franchise fee or gross receipts tax of five percent (5%) on gross 
receipts from the sale of gas, electricity and water.  In accordance with R.S.Mo. §  393.275.1, if 
the Public Service Commission approves a tariff increase in excess of seven percent (7%) for 
any entity providing gas, electricity or water in Parkville, the City is required to roll back the rate 
of the gross receipts tax imposed on utilities unless the City has passed an ordinance 
maintaining the existing rates.   No tariff increase is proposed at this time.  This ordinance is 
proposed to maintain the existing franchise fee and gross receipts tax rates imposed on the sale 
of gas, electricity and water should an increase greater than 7% be proposed in the future.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT:   
No immediate impact.  Unless passed, a tariff increase greater than 7% would require the City 
to roll back the rate of the gross receipts tax imposed on utilities of franchise fee and gross 
receipt taxes collected, reducing City revenues.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the ordinance reaffirming the existing rates as recommended. 
2. Table consideration for further review and discussion.  
3. Deny the ordinance.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval of the ordinance reaffirming the gross receipts tax / franchise fee as proposed.   Legal 
counsel has reviewed the ordinance as to form and recommended approval as submitted.   
 
POLICY:   
Per R.S.Mo. §  393.275.1, the proposed reaffirmation must be approved by the Board of 
Aldermen.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:   
I move that Bill No. _______, reaffirming the gross receipts tax / franchise fee to be imposed 
upon gas, electric and water corporations conducting business within the city and matters 
related thereto, be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title only. 
 
I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 



ITEM 5C 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5C - Tariff Reaffirmation\5C - app summary - Tariff reaffirmation.doc 

I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ______. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
1. Ordinance 
2. R.S.Mo. §  393.275 



ITEM 5C 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

BILL NO. 2744                     ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE REAFFIRMING THE GROSS RECEIPTS TAX / FRANCHISE FEE TO BE 
IMPOSED UPON GAS, ELECTRIC AND WATER CORPORATIONS CONDUCTING 
BUSINESS WITHIN THE CITY AND MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, the City currently imposes a franchise fee or gross receipts tax of five percent (5%) 
on gross receipts from the sale of gas, electricity and water; and  
 
WHEREAS, from time to time the Missouri Public Service Commission (PSC) may grant a gas, 
electric or water corporation tariff increases; and  
 
WHEREAS, tariff increases approved by the PSC in excess of seven percent (7%) trigger 
requirements under RSMo. §393.275.1 to roll back the rate of the gross receipts tax imposed on 
utilities unless the City has passed an ordinance maintaining the existing rates despite the 
increases in gross receipts to the utility as a result of a tariff increase; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Aldermen desire to maintain the existing franchise fee and gross 
receipts tax rates imposed on the sale of gas, electricity and water. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF 
PARKVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Pursuant to Section 393.275, RSMo., and any and all other applicable authority, the 
City shall maintain the tax rate of its franchise fee and gross receipts tax on the gross receipts of 
gas, electric and water utilities without reduction, notwithstanding any periodic fluctuations in the 
tariffs of such utility corporations or any notice thereof including, but not limited to, notice sent 
under Section 393.275, RSMo., as amended.  
 
Section 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  
 
Section 3. The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision hereof is declared 
invalid, unconstitutional or unenforceable, such determination shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of this ordinance. 
 
Section 4. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage and approval. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this 15th day of October 2013. 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mayor James C. Brooks   

 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney 

 Ord. No. ____ Page 1 of 1 



Missouri Revised Statutes

Chapter 393

Gas, Electric, Water, Heating and Sewer Companies

Section 393.275

August 28, 2012

Commission to notify cities and counties of tariff increases, when, contents of notice--reduction

of license tax, when--exception, procedure--to maintain.

393.275. 1. The commission shall notify the governing body of each city or county imposing a business license tax

pursuant to section 66.300, 92.045, 94.110, 94.270 or 94.360, or a similar tax adopted pursuant to charter provisions

in any constitutional charter city with a population of at least three hundred fifty thousand inhabitants which is

located in more than one county, on gross receipts of any gas corporation, electric corporation, water corporation or

sewer corporation of any tariff increases authorized for such firm doing business in that city or county if the approved

increase exceeds seven percent. The commission shall include with such notice to any city or county the percentage

increase approved for the utility, together with an estimate of the annual increase in gross receipts resulting from the

tariff increase on customers residing in that city or county. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to rate

adjustments in the purchase price of natural gas which are approved by the commission.

2. The governing body of each city or county notified of a tariff increase as provided in subsection 1 of this section

shall reduce the tax rate of its business license tax on the gross receipts of utility corporations. Within sixty days of

the effective date of the tariff increase, the tax rate shall be reduced to the extent necessary so that revenue for the

ensuing twelve months will be approximately equal to the revenue received during the preceding twelve months plus a

growth factor. The growth factor shall be equal to the average of the additional revenue received in each of the

preceding three years. However, a city or county may maintain the tax rate of its business license tax on the gross

receipts of utility corporations without reduction if an ordinance to maintain the tax rate is enacted by the governing

body of the city or an order to maintain the tax rate is issued by the governing body of the county after September 28,

1985. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to rate adjustments in the purchase price of natural gas which

are approved by the commission.

(L. 1984 H.B. 1477 § 393.190 subsec. 2, § 2, A.L. 1985 H.B. 200, A.L. 1993 H.B. 453)

© Copyright

 Missouri General Assembly

Section 393-275 Commission to notify cities and countie http://www.moga.mo.gov/statutes/C300-399/3930000275.HTM

1 of 1 10/9/2013 5:06 PM

ITEM 5C
For 10-15-13

Board of Aldermen Meeting



ITEM 5D 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5D - FP National Townhomes 4-1 to 4-3\5D - app summary - FP Nat twnhms 4-1 to 4-3.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 8, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE:   
Ordinance for the Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, Townhomes at The National – 1st Plat.  Case 
PZ13-13.  Applicant, J3-Pandi, LLC, property owners.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
The plat is necessary to define three individual townhome units (units and a defined area 
around each) to be owned privately as distinguished from the remainder of the lot, which will be 
held and maintained by a common association.   
 
The application has been reviewed against the City of Parkville’s Municipal Codes, including the 
subdivision regulations, the R-5 zoning district regulations, the approved Plans for the 
Townhomes at The National and the Final Plat of the Townhomes at The National - First Plat.  
The proposed plat meets all applicable requirements.  With the exception of a reduction from 
four units to three on Lot 4, all other details are consistent with previously approved plans and 
plats.   
 
No easements or rights-of-way have changed from the approval of the Townhomes at The 
National – First Plat as recorded.  The plat does not affect existing utilities and no new public 
improvements are required or proposed (all have previously been constructed).   
 
BUDGET IMPACT:   
No impact.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the Final Plat by ordinance as submitted. 
2. Approve the Final Plat by ordinance subject to changes. 
3. Deny the Final Plat.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval of the proposed final plat as submitted. 
 
POLICY:   
All plats must be approved by the Board of Aldermen prior to recording.  Per the conditions of 
approval of the Townhomes at The National – First Plat, the replat to create individual 
townhome lots does not require Planning and Zoning Commission consideration and 
recommendation so long as no significant changes to the plat are proposed. 
 
 
 
 



ITEM 5D 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5D - FP National Townhomes 4-1 to 4-3\5D - app summary - FP Nat twnhms 4-1 to 4-3.doc 

SUGGESTED MOTION:   
I move that Bill No. _______, an ordinance approving the Final Plat, lot 4-1 through lot 4-3, 
Townhomes at the National - First Plat, a subdivision in the City of Parkville, Platte County, 
Missouri, be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title only. 
 
I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title 
only.  
 
I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. ______. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposed Ordinance 
2. Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, Townhomes at the National – First Plat 
3. The National, and the Final Plat of the Townhomes at The National - First Plat (for 

reference)  



ITEM 5D 
For 10-15-13  

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Ord. No. ____ Page 1 of 1 

BILL NO. 2745                                                  ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT, LOT 4-1 THROUGH LOT 4-3, 
TOWNHOMES AT THE NATIONAL - FIRST PLAT, A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF 
PARKVILLE, PLATTE COUNTY, MISSOURI. 
 
WHEREAS, the Final Development Plan of the Townhomes at The National, showing lots to be 
held in common ownership by a common association and conceptual locations of individual 
units to be owned privately, was approved by the Board of Aldermen by voice vote on October 
16, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Final Plat of the Townhomes at The National - First Plat, showing only lots and 
not including individual buildings, was approved by Ordinance 2369 on October 16, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS, since approval of the Final Development Plan and Plat, building permits were 
issued for construction of three units on Lot 4, foundations were constructed on said units and 
said foundations have been surveyed; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, Townhomes at The National – First Plat is 
necessary to define three individual townhome units (units and an area around each) to be 
owned privately as distinguished from the remainder of the lot, which will be held and 
maintained by a common association.   
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF 
PARKVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, Townhomes at The National – First Plat, as 
described in the application and depicted in the plat attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference as Exhibit A is hereby approved. 
 
SECTION 2.  The City hereby accepts and agrees to maintain City improvements, if any, in 
easements and rights-of-ways, which are designated on the Final Plat, Lot 4-1 through 4-3, 
Townhomes at The National – First Plat (previously recorded on the Final Plat of the 
Townhomes at The National - First Plat). 
 
SECTION 3.  The City Clerk is hereby directed to have said plat recorded in the office of the 
Platte County Recorder of Deeds following execution. 
 
SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this 15th day of October 2013. 
 
 

________________________ 
Mayor James C. Brooks 

 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
___________________________ 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney 





MARK IV APARTMENTS

UNPLATTED

BELL ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK LOTS 29 - 34

TRACT B

TRACT A

19

18

17

6

89
10

11

121315

1 3 4

5

16

2

14

UNPLATTED

BELL ROAD MANOR

UNPLATTED

7

AMENDED PLAT
THE NATIONAL FOURTH PLAT

UNPLATTED

TRACT C

TRACT D

FINAL PLAT: TOWNHOMES AT THE NATIONAL 1ST PLAT
NW 1/4, SEC. 26, T-51-N, R-34-W

PARKVILLE, PLATTE COUNTY, MISSOURI

\\
Cr

ai
g0

7\
D

W
G

\B
06

_1
10

1\
Pl

at
\1

10
1F

PL
AT

.d
w

g,
 9

/5
/2

00
7 

2:
49

:3
3 

PM
, 
co

op
er



ITEM 5E 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5E - Myers Rezoning\5E - app summary - Myers rezoning.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 8, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE:   
Ordinance amending Chapter 405 of the Parkville zoning code to rezone 5.0 acres from County 
“AG” Agriculture District to city “R-1” Single-Family Residential District.  Case  PZ13-12.  Kevin 
Myers on behalf of Arville & Marion Paulette Myers, property owners.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
The applicant proposes to rezone 5.0 acres from County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” 
Single-Family Residential District in order to construct a new single-family home on the subject 
property (City zoning is required to obtain a Parkville building permit).  The property was 
annexed into Parkville in 2001 and has been zoned County AG since that time.  The area to be 
rezoned is to be deeded to the applicant by separate instrument.  Since the property to be 
deeded is not less than 5.0 acres and no new streets or access easements are required, the 
property does not have to be subdivided.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT:   
No impact.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Approve the rezoning via ordinance as recommended. 
2. Return the application to the Planning Commission to reconsider. 
3. Deny the Final Plat.    
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
Approval of the rezoning by ordinance as recommended. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION:   
October 8, 2013, the Parkville Planning & Zoning Commission held said public hearing, 
considered the rezoning application and recommended approval of the proposed rezoning by a 
vote of 5 to 0. 
 
POLICY:   
Per Parkville Municipal Code, Chapter 483, all zoning district changes must be approved by the 
Board of Aldermen by ordinance following receipt of a recommendation and report from the 
Planning Commission.  Prior to their recommendation, the Planning Commission must first 
consider the application during a public hearing.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:   
I move that Bill No. _______, an amending Chapter 405 of the Parkville zoning code to rezone 
5.0 acres from County “AG” Agriculture District to city “R-1” Single-Family Residential District, 
be approved on first reading and passed to second reading by title only. 



ITEM 5E 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\5E - Myers Rezoning\5E - app summary - Myers rezoning.doc 

 
I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on first reading and passed to second reading 
by title only.  
 
I move that Bill No. _______ be approved on second reading to become Ordinance No. 
______. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Proposed Ordinance 
2. Description for Rezoning map prepared by Aylette Survey & Engineering Co. 8-14-13, 

attached to the proposed ordinance as Exhibit A  
3. Staff report submitted to the Planning Commission 
4. Application for zoning district change 
5. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property  
6. A copy of the letter of notice mailed certified mail to property owners within 185 feet of the 

subject property 



ITEM 5E 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
 Ord. No. ____ Page 1 of 1 

BILL NO. 2746                     ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 405 OF THE PARKVILLE ZONING CODE TO 
REZONE 5.0 ACRES FROM COUNTY “AG” AGRICULTURE DISTRICT TO CITY “R-1” 
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT. 
 
WHEREAS, the subject property was annexed in 2001 and retained a County “AG” Agriculture 
District zoning; and  
 
WHEREAS, Kevin Myers submitted an application on behalf of Arville and Marion Paulette 
Myers, owners of said property, to rezone said property to the City’s “R-1” Single-Family 
Residential District; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing to be held before the Planning and Zoning Commission  
was published, mailed and posted in accordance with the Parkville Municipal Code and Missouri 
Revised Statutes; and 
 
WHEREAS, all property owners within 185 feet of the subject property were given notice of their 
right to protest said rezoning; and 
 
WHEREAS, on October 8, 2013, the Parkville Planning & Zoning Commission held said public 
hearing, considered the rezoning application and recommended approval of the proposed 
rezoning by a vote of 5 to 0.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE CITY OF 
PARKVILLE, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Section 405 of the Parkville Zoning Code is hereby amended to rezone 5.0 acres, 
generally located approximately one half mile south of 45 Highway, south of the intersection of 
Brink Myers Road and Brink Myers Road on a portion property at 14801 NW 68th Street and 
legally described and depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference, from County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” Single-Family District,. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 
PASSED and APPROVED this 15th day of October 2013. 

 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mayor James C. Brooks   

 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk Melissa McChesney 





  
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 

 

H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\rpts\SA rezone Myers 5 ac 10-8-13.doc Page 1 of 4 

Planning Commission Meeting 
October 8, 2013 

 

 
Staff Analysis 

 
Agenda Item:  4.A 
 
Proposal: Request for approval of a proposed zoning district change for 5.0 acres from 

County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” Single-Family Residential District  
 
Case No: PZ13-12 
 
Applicant: Kevin Myers on behalf of Arville & Marion Paulette Myers, property owners 
 
Location: Generally located approximately ½ mile south of 45 Highway, south of the 

intersection of Brink Myers Road and Brink Myers Road (west of the existing 
pond) and generally described as a 5 acre portion of the Arville Myers property at 
14801 NW 68th Street (Brinkmyers Road) in Parkville, Platte County, Missouri. 

 
Zoning:   Existing - County “AG” Agriculture District  

Proposed – City “R-1” Single-Family Residential District  
 
Parcel #: Part of parcel # 20-4.0-19-000-000-006-000 
 
Exhibits:  A.  This staff report 

B. Application for zoning district change 
C. Area map showing approximate location of the subject property  
D. Description for Rezoning map prepared by Aylette Survey & Engineering Co. 

8-14-13, showing the proposed zoning boundaries 
E. A copy of the letter of notice mailed certified mail to property owners within 

185 feet of the subject property  
F. Additional exhibits as may be presented at the public hearing 
 

By Reference: A.  The Parkville Municipal Code including Title IV, Zoning Code, including but 
not limited to Chapters 410, “R-1” Single-Family Residential District 
Regulations and 483, Changes and Amendments 

B. The Platte County Zoning Regulations, including but not limited to Section 
400.130, County “AG” Agriculture District  

 

 
Overview 
 
Applicant Kevin Myers, representing property owners Arville & Marion Paulette Myers, proposes 
to rezone 5.0 acres from County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” Single-Family Residential 
District in order to construct a new single-family home on the subject property (City zoning 
required to obtain a Parkville building permit).  The property was annexed into Parkville in 2001 
and has been zoned County AG since that time.  The area to be rezoned is to be deeded to the 
applicant by separate instrument.  Since the property to be deeded is not less than 5.0 acres 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\rpts\SA rezone Myers 5 ac 10-8-13.doc Page 2 of 4 

and no new streets or access easements are required, the property does not have to be 
subdivided. 
 
Review and Analysis 
 
The application has been further reviewed against the City of Parkville’s Municipal Code 
including the applicable R-1 zoning district regulations and the Master Plan, including the 
adopted Future Land Use Plan and other application sections.  Neither the City Codes nor State 
Statutes define how the Planning Commission shall determine if a proposed zoning district 
change is appropriate.  Rather, following is a list of considerations to be used as a guide based 
on applicable Missouri case law.  Following each is City staff’s analysis, findings and 
conclusions.  These are not criteria or rules, but rather offered to aid the Planning Commission 
and to be used along with other relevant considerations to evaluate the application.   
 
1. The zoning, uses and character of the neighborhood and nearby properties, and the 

compatibility of the proposed zoning with such.  The immediately surrounding properties 
can best be described as rural residential or undeveloped.   Properties to the north, east and 
south are zoned County AG or County R-80 residential and contain single-family homes or 
are undeveloped.  Properties approximately 1/4 mile to the north and east are zoned County 
R-7 and City R-3 and have been subdivided in to suburban residential lots as part of the 
Stonegate and Thousand Oaks subdivisions.  The property to the west is rezoned to R-4 
Multiple Family Residential District and development plans were approved but have never 
been constructed.   
 
The subject 5.0 acres is part of a larger parcel which is currently zoned County “AG” 
Agriculture District and contains a single-family home and pond.  This property was annexed 
in 2001 and has retained its County zoning since. Rezoning was not required at the time of 
annexation.  However, the property must be zoned to a City zoning district prior to obtaining 
a building permit.  As such, the applicant proposes to rezone the 5.0 acres to City “R-1” 
Single-Family Residential District.  The 5.0 acres corresponds to property to be deeded to 
the applicant separately so the applicant can construct a new single-family home.   
 
The City of Parkville does not have an AG zoning district.  The closest equivalent is the 
proposed City “R-1” Single-family Residential District.  The proposed zoning is less 
restrictive than the existing County AG zoning as it allows smaller single-family lots and 
some non-residential uses not currently permitted under the County AG district regulations.  
However, the zoning allows primarily single-family uses compatible with existing and 
projected single-family uses in the surrounding area.  Also, being the closest equivalent 
district, the proposed R-1 single-family zoning would have the least impact, if any, of any 
City zoning designation.  Staff concludes the proposed zoning is generally compatible with 
the zoning, uses and character of the neighborhood and nearby properties. 
 
Notices were sent to owners of property within 185 feet of the subject property.  As of the 
date of this report, no comments have been received identifying any concerns about the 
proposed zoning or compatibility with the character of the neighborhood and nearby 
properties. 

 
2. The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted 

under the existing zoning regulations and the extent to which removal of restrictions 
imposed by the current zoning district may affect the neighborhood and nearby 
property.  The subject area is currently restricted to uses permitted under the County “AG” 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\rpts\SA rezone Myers 5 ac 10-8-13.doc Page 3 of 4 

Agriculture District zoning which was retained on annexation.  The 5.0 acres is part of a 
larger parcel containing an existing single-family home.  The existing AG zoning allows “a 
primary single-family detached residence.”  The 5.0 acre portion of the site proposed to be 
rezoned to R-1 is proposed to be deeded to the applicant by separate instrument for the 
purpose of creating a new single-family parcel.  This new single-family parcel would not be 
allowed under the existing County AG zoning.  Thus the rezoning is required to 
accommodate the new single-family home.  Further, the rezoning is necessary to obtain a 
Parkville building permit.  Rezoning is not required at the time of annexation, but the City 
cannot issue permits for any new construction, improvements or other work requiring 
permits under the County zoning.   
 
The proposed City R-1 zoning district is the City’s lowest density zoning district and is most 
compatible with existing and projected residential uses in the surrounding area.  Although 
rezoning would allow single-family construction not otherwise allowed under the existing AG 
zoning, the residential use permitted on the 5.0 acres is not incompatible with the existing or 
planned rural and suburban single-family or multi-family residential uses in the area.  Staff 
concludes that restricting the property to the existing zoning is not necessary to protect 
surrounding and nearby property and uses.  The proposed zoning allows uses generally 
compatible with existing and projected development in the area.    

 
Notices were sent to owners of property within 185 feet of the subject property.  As of the 
date of this report, no comments have been received identifying any concerns about the 
proposed zoning or any adverse affect to the neighborhood and nearby property. 

 
3. If vacant, the length of time the subject property has remained vacant as currently 

zoned and whether the current zoning is a contributing factor.  The subject property is 
not vacant.  The 5.0 acres is part of a larger parcel which contains a single-family home.  
However, the parcel cannot be further developed under the existing zoning.  The applicants 
desire to construct a new single-family home on the subject 5.0 acres is dependent on 
rezoning to a district which allows the creation of an additional lot.       
 

4. The relative gain, if any, to the public health, safety and welfare due to denial of the 
application, as compared to the hardship imposed upon the landowner, if any, as a 
result of denial of the application.  The proposed rezoning allows uses generally 
compatible with the uses in the surrounding area.  With the exception of private 
improvements necessary to serve a single-family home, area utilities and services are 
adequate to accommodate development under the proposed zoning (see factor 6 below or 
additional information).  Based on the adequacy of existing utilities and services and 
conclusions in numbers 1 and 2 above, there does not appear to be any detrimental affect 
on the public health, safety and welfare and as such, denial of the application is not 
necessitated to protect the public interest.     

 
Based on the conclusions in numbers 1, 2 and 3 above, denial would appear to result in a 
hardship on the applicant to the extent that he would not be able to develop the desired 
single-family home. 
 

5. Conformance of the requested zoning with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and any 
other adopted comprehensive plans, neighborhood or sub-area plans in which the 
property is located or abuts.  The City’s adopted Master Plan projects the subject property 
being developed for “Residential Neighborhood” land uses.  This land use designation is 
primarily intended for single-family, detached residential development, but also may include 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\rpts\SA rezone Myers 5 ac 10-8-13.doc Page 4 of 4 

a variety of supporting residential building types such as clustered or attached single-family 
units, and town homes designed to function as a neighborhood, master planned in 
accordance with the Neighborhood Design Policies and Design Expectations. This category 
is also appropriate for planned public and semi-public non-residential uses designed to be 
compatible with residential uses, such as schools, religious institutions and civic uses.  
 
The proposed “R-1” Single-family zoning and uses allowed under said zoning are 
compatible with the land use designation.       

 
6. The adequacy of public utilities and other needed public services and impact of the 

proposed zoning, if any, on such.  Based on evaluations of previously approved 
development in the immediate area, the proposed rezoning does not put any significant 
burden on the existing utilities and services.  With the exception of private improvements 
necessary to serve a new single-family home, area utilities and services are adequate to 
accommodate development under the proposed zoning.  Adequate sewer, water and 
electrical capacity exist to serve development on this property.  Denial of the application is 
not required to prevent adverse impacts on the utilities.   
 

Staff Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed rezoning based on the above findings, conclusions 
and opinions.  It should be noted that this recommendation is made without knowledge of facts 
and testimony, which may be presented during the required public hearing.  
 
Necessary Action 
 
Following consideration of the application, the factors discussed above and any testimony 
presented during the public hearing, the Planning Commission must recommend approval or 
denial of the application unless otherwise tabled.  Unless tabled, the Planning Commission’s 
action will be forwarded to the Board of Aldermen along with any explanation thereof for final 
action.   
 

End of Memorandum 
 
 
 
  
__________________________________10-4-13______ 
Sean Ackerson, AICP    Date 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 









H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\notice\hearing notice letter.doc 

 
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 
 

 
Friday, September 20, 2013 
 
RE: Notice of Public Hearing – Application to rezone a 5.0 acre portion of parcel number 

20-4.0-19-000-000-006-000 from County “AG” Agriculture District City “R-1” Single-
Family District. 

 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Planning Commission of Parkville, Missouri will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, October 
8, 2013 at 5:30 pm in the Boardroom at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, 
Missouri 64152, to consider a request to rezone a 5.0 acres portion of parcel 20-4.0-19-000-
000-006-000 from County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” Single-Family District.  The 
subject property is generally located south of 45 Highway, south of the intersection of Brink 
Myers Road and Brink Myers Road (west of the existing pond) and generally described as a 5 
acre portion of the Arville Myers property.  See attached drawing.  The applicant proposes to 
rezone the property in order to build a single-family home on the 5.0 acres.     
 
As an owner of property within 185 feet of the subject property, you are being notified of this 
hearing as required by the City of Parkville Municipal Code and State statutes.  The meeting is 
open to the public and you and all interested parties are welcome to attend and express 
opinions before the Planning Commission during the public hearing.  In addition, you are 
welcome to submit written comments to be distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the 
meeting.  Written comments must be received by the Community Development Department on 
or before 5:00 p.m. Thursday, October 3, 2013 to be included in the Commission’s materials for 
consideration prior to the meeting.  Comments may be mailed to 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, 
MO, 64152, faxed to 816-741-0013 or emailed to amandamiller@parkvillemo.com. Comments 
received after that date will be handed out the night of the meeting. 
 
Following consideration of the proposed rezoning, the Planning Commission will recommend 
action to the Board of Aldermen or table the application for further consideration. Unless tabled 
or withdrawn by the applicant, the Board of Aldermen will take final action on this application at 
their regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.  
 
The full application and other supporting materials may be viewed in the Community 
Development Department at City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, MO 64152.  A copy of the 
Parkville Municipal Code, including the “R-1” Single-Family District regulations may also be 
viewed at the Community Development Department or online at www.parkvillemo.gov.  For 
additional questions, please call the Community Development Department at 816-741-7676. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF PARKVILLE 
 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP 
Assistant City Administrator /  
Community Development Director 
 
CC:  Parkville Planning and Zoning Commission 







  

BrinkMyers Road 
 

Thousand 

Oaks 

Stone 

Gate 

45 

Highway 

Approximate  
boundary of  

subject site 

Area Map showing approximate location of proposed rezoning 
Case PZ13-12 

 



H:\PLANNING\Reviews - City Apps\PZ13-12 rezone Myers 5 acres\notice\hearing notice letter.doc 

 
 

 CITY OF PARKVILLE  ▪  8880 Clark Avenue  ▪  Parkville, MO 64152  ▪  (816) 741-7676  ▪  FAX  (816) 741-0013 
 

 
Friday, September 20, 2013 
 
RE: Notice of Public Hearing – Application to rezone a 5.0 acre portion of parcel number 

20-4.0-19-000-000-006-000 from County “AG” Agriculture District City “R-1” Single-
Family District. 

 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
The Planning Commission of Parkville, Missouri will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, October 
8, 2013 at 5:30 pm in the Boardroom at Parkville City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, 
Missouri 64152, to consider a request to rezone a 5.0 acres portion of parcel 20-4.0-19-000-
000-006-000 from County “AG” Agriculture District to City “R-1” Single-Family District.  The 
subject property is generally located south of 45 Highway, south of the intersection of Brink 
Myers Road and Brink Myers Road (west of the existing pond) and generally described as a 5 
acre portion of the Arville Myers property.  See attached drawing.  The applicant proposes to 
rezone the property in order to build a single-family home on the 5.0 acres.     
 
As an owner of property within 185 feet of the subject property, you are being notified of this 
hearing as required by the City of Parkville Municipal Code and State statutes.  The meeting is 
open to the public and you and all interested parties are welcome to attend and express 
opinions before the Planning Commission during the public hearing.  In addition, you are 
welcome to submit written comments to be distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the 
meeting.  Written comments must be received by the Community Development Department on 
or before 5:00 p.m. Thursday, October 3, 2013 to be included in the Commission’s materials for 
consideration prior to the meeting.  Comments may be mailed to 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, 
MO, 64152, faxed to 816-741-0013 or emailed to amandamiller@parkvillemo.com. Comments 
received after that date will be handed out the night of the meeting. 
 
Following consideration of the proposed rezoning, the Planning Commission will recommend 
action to the Board of Aldermen or table the application for further consideration. Unless tabled 
or withdrawn by the applicant, the Board of Aldermen will take final action on this application at 
their regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, October 15, 2013 at 7:00 p.m.  
 
The full application and other supporting materials may be viewed in the Community 
Development Department at City Hall, 8880 Clark Avenue, Parkville, MO 64152.  A copy of the 
Parkville Municipal Code, including the “R-1” Single-Family District regulations may also be 
viewed at the Community Development Department or online at www.parkvillemo.gov.  For 
additional questions, please call the Community Development Department at 816-741-7676. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
CITY OF PARKVILLE 
 
 
Sean Ackerson, AICP 
Assistant City Administrator /  
Community Development Director 
 
CC:  Parkville Planning and Zoning Commission 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 8, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 

Kirk Rome P.E. 
Public Works Director  

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE: 
Request for approval to contract with McAnany Concrete for the 2013 Curb and Gutter and 
Sidewalk project. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
This work involves removal and replacement of deteriorated concrete curb and gutter and 
sidewalks. Staff will be utilizing in-house crews and equipment to demolish a portion of the curb 
and gutters and sidewalks to be replaced. The project includes removal and replacement of curb 
& gutter, replacement of concrete sidewalk, and step repairs south of City Hall (see attached 
Attachment 1 – Scope of Work). Four bids were received, and the lowest responsible bidder was 
McAnany Concrete of Shawnee, KS.  
 

BUDGET IMPACT: 
The 2013 budget includes $60,000 in the Transportation Fund (40) for curb and sidewalk 
removal and replacement. In addition, the Birkdale/Waters Edge agreement will provide $8,800 
toward the curb work. Staff recommends utilizing available safety funds from the City’s property 
and liability insurer, Midwest Public Risk (MPR), for eligible sidewalk repairs in the amount of 
$4,300.   
 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Authorize a contract with McAnany Concrete in the amount of $73,100. 
2. Do not authorize a contract with McAnany Concrete.  
3. As the Board deems appropriate.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve a contract with McAnany Concrete in the amount of $73,100. 
 
FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
On October 7, 2013, the Finance Committee, on a vote of 5-0, approved the recommended 
contract.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION: 
I move to approve a contract with McAnany Concrete for the 2013 Curb and Gutter and Sidewalk 
project in the amount of $73,100. 
 
POLICY: 
The Board of Aldermen per the Purchasing Policy (Resolution No. 02-01-13) must approve 
contracts over $10,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Scope of Work 
2. Contract 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
1 

CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

  THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT, entered into on this 10th day of October, 2013, by and between the CITY 

OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI (“City”) and McAnany Construction, Inc.(“Service Provider”). 

WHERAS, the City needs to make repairs to curb and gutter and sidewalk in multiple locations as 

defined by the bid documents; and 

  WHEREAS, the City has budgeted funds to make the necessary repairs; and 

WHEREAS, Service Provider is a local business with the necessary skills and qualifications to provide 

the concrete repair services. 

  NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth herein, 

the parties mutually agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Contractor shall follow the standards as outlined in the project manual including but not limited to 

the following: 

1. Contractor shall notify residents of the upcoming work per the project manual.  

2. All construction shall meet current KC‐APWA standards and specifications for concrete repair 

and installation per the bid manual. All temporary traffic control shall meet current MUTCD 

standards. 

3. Concrete shall meet the standards for MCIB Mix WA 610‐1‐4.   

4. Contract time is 90 days with $100 per day in liquidated damages beyond that time. 

Work to be performed: 

A. 4” Concrete Sidewalk Replacement (City Demolition) 60 SY at $60 per SY = $3600 

B. 7” Concrete Sidewalk Replacement (Contractor Demo) 7 SY at $100 per SY= $700 

C. CG‐2 Curb and Gutter (City Demo old curb)  982 Lineal Feet at $30 per foot = $29,485 

D.  CG‐2 Curb and Gutter(Contractor Demo old curb) 982 Lineal Feet at $40 per foot = $39,315 

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT= $73,100 

 
II. STANDARD OF CARE 

A. Service Provider shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in the performance 

of all Services to the City that is ordinarily possessed and exercised by reasonable, prudent, and 

experienced professionals under similar circumstances. 

B. Service Provider represents it has all necessary licenses, permits, knowledge, and certifications 
required to perform the Services described herein. 

 
III. COMPENSATION 

A. As consideration for providing the Services, the City shall pay Service Provider as follows: 
1. Lump sum of $73,100.00  

B. Service Provider shall submit an invoice at the completion of the work.  
C. Service Provider shall pay prevailing wage and submit documentation in accordance with the 

 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
2 

state provisions.  
 

IV. SCHEDULE 
A. Unless otherwise directed by the City, Service Provider shall commence performance of the 

Services upon execution of this Agreement.  
B. Neither the City nor the Service Provider shall be in default of the Agreement for delays in 

performance caused by circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the non‐performing 
party.  

C. If Service Provider’s performance is delayed due to delays caused by the City, Service Provider 
shall have no claim against the City for damages or payment adjustment other than an 
extension of time to perform the Services.  

 
V. LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Service Provider shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and its departments, elected 
officials, officers, employees and agents, from and against all liability, suits, actions, 
proceedings, judgments, claims, losses, damages, and injuries (including attorneys’ fees and 
other expenses of litigation, arbitration, mediation or appeal), which in whole or in part arise 
out of or have been connected with Service Providers’ negligence, error, omission, 
recklessness, or wrongful or criminal conduct in the performance of Services, including 
performance by Service Provider’s employees and agents; or arising from any claim for libel, 
slander, defamation, copyright infringement, invasion of privacy, piracy and/or plagiarism 
related to any materials related to materials Service Provider creates or supplies to the City, 
except to the extent that such claims arise from materials created or supplied by the City. 

B. Service Provider’s obligation to indemnify and hold harmless shall remain in effect and shall be 
binding on Service Provider whether such injury shall accrue, or may be discovered, before or 
after termination of this Agreement.  

 
VI. INSURANCE 

A. The  Service  Provider  shall  secure  and maintain,  at  its  expense,  through  the duration of  this 
Agreement Commercial General Liability Insurance on an occurrence basis with minimum limits 
of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $1,000,000 aggregate coverage. Service Provider shall also 
secure  and  maintain  Worker’s  Compensation  and  Employer’s  Liability  Insurance,  when 
applicable, at the limits required by state and/or federal law. The City will only accept coverage 
from an insurance carrier that offers proof that it : 

1. Is licensed to do business in the State of Missouri; 
2. Carries a Best’s policy holder rating of A or better; and  
3. Carries at least a Class X financial rating. 

B. The City reserves the right to review certified copies of any and all insurance policies to which 
this Agreement is applicable. The City shall be given not less than thirty (30) days written notice 
from  the  insurer(s)  at  risk  before  cancellation,  non‐renewal,  or  material  modification  of 
coverage.   

 
VII. ASSIGNMENT OF AND RESPONSIBILITY FOR PERSONNEL 

A. Service Provider’s assignment of personnel to perform the Services shall be subject to the City’s 
oversight and general guidance. The City reserves the right to request qualifications and/or 
reject service from any and all employees of the Service Provider. 

 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
3 

B. While upon City premises, the Service Provider’s employees and agents shall be subject to the 
City’s rules and regulations respecting its property and the conduct of employees thereon.  

 
VIII.  RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES 

A. Service Provider represents that it has, or will secure at Service Provider's own expense, all 
personnel required in performing the Services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not 
be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. 

B. All of the Services required hereunder will be performed by the Service Provider or under 
Service Provider's supervision, and all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and 
shall be authorized or permitted under State and Local law to perform such services.  

C. None of the work or services covered by this Agreement shall be subcontracted without the 
prior written approval of the City. Any work or services subcontracted hereunder shall be 
specified by written contract or agreement and shall be subject to each provision of this 
Agreement.  

 
IX. NOTICES 

A. All notices required by this Agreement shall be in writing, and unless otherwise directed by this 
Agreement, shall be sent to the addresses as set forth in this Section: 

B. Notices sent by Service Provider shall be sent to: 
City of Parkville 
Attn: Public Works Director 
8880 Clark Ave. 
Parkville, MO 64152 

C. Notices sent by the City shall be sent to: 
McAnany Construction, Inc. 
PO Box 860009 
Shawnee, KS 66286‐0009 

 
X. TERM AND TERMINATION 

A. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of execution, when the Agreement is 
signed by both parties.  

 
XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws 
of the State of Missouri.  

B. Assignability. Service Provider shall not assign any interest on this Agreement, and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or invitation), without the prior 
written consent of the City thereto. Provided, however, that the claims for money by Service 
Provider from the City under this Agreement may be assigned to a bank, trust company, or 
other financial institution without such approval. Written notice of any such assignment or 
transfer shall be furnished promptly to the City. 

C. Media Announcements. Service Provider shall not be authorized to make statements to the 
media or otherwise on behalf of the City without express direction and consent of the City 

D. Compliance with Local Laws. Service provider shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
and codes of the State and local governments, and shall save the City harmless with respect to 
any damages arising from any tort done in performing any of the work embraced by this 

 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 
4 

Agreement. 

E. Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of this Agreement, Service Provider 
agrees as follows: 

i. Service Provider will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, religion, or sex. Service 
Provider will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, 
national origin, religion, or sex. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, 
employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; 
layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for 
training, including apprenticeship.  

ii. Service Provider will, in all solicitation or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of Professional, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for 
employment without regard to race, creed, color, national origin, religion, or sex.  

iii. Service Provider will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that provisions will be binding upon each 
subcontractor, provided that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or 
subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw materials.  

F. Authorized Employees. Service Provider acknowledges that Section285.530, RSMo, prohibits 
any business entity or employer from knowingly employing, hiring for employment, or 
continuing to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work within the State of Missouri. 
Service Provider therefore covenants that it will not knowingly in violation of subsection 1 or 
Section 285.530, RSMo, and that it will not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 
continue to employ any unauthorized aliens to perform Services related to this Agreement, and 
that its employees are lawfully to work in the United States.  

G. Interest of Members of a City. No member of the governing body of the City and no other 
officer, employee, or agent of the City who exercises any functions or responsibilities in 
connection with the planning and carrying out of this Agreement, shall have any personal 
financial interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, and Service Provider shall take 
appropriate steps to assure compliance.  

H.  Interest of Service Provider and Employees. Service Provider covenants that he/she presently 
has no interest and shall not acquire interest, direct or indirect, in the study area or any parcels 
therein or any other interest which would conflict in any manner or degree with the 
performance of his/her services hereunder. Service Provider further covenants that in the 
performance of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed.  

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire Agreement and understanding 
between the parties, and this Agreement supersedes any prior negotiations, proposals, or 
agreements. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any amendment to this Agreement 
shall be in writing and shall be signed by the City and Service Provider, and attached hereto.  

J. Severability. If any part, term or provision of this Agreement, or any attachments or 
amendments hereto, is declared invalid, void, or enforceable, all remaining parts, terms, and 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect.  

K. Waiver. The failure of either party to require performance of this Agreement shall not affect 
such party’s right to enforce the same. A waiver by either party of any provision of breach of 

 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

 

 

5 

this Agreement shall be in writing. A written waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights 
with respect to any other provision or breach.  

L. Third Parties. The Services to be performed by the Service Provider are intended solely for the 
benefit for the City. Nothing contained herein shall create a contractual relationship with, or 
any rights in favor of, any person or entity not a signatory to this Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date 
first above written. 

CITY OF PARKVILLE, MISSOURI 

 

By: ______________________ 
              James C. Brooks, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________ 
Melissa McChesney, City Clerk 

 

 

McAnany Construction, Inc. 

 

By: ____________________ 

Date: ____________________ 

 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

Summary of Work 
Curb & Gutter Replacement Locations: 
 
RISS LAKE: 
Arbor Way     
6135 – 25’          
Clearwater Drive     
8005 – 150’ 8013 – 10’ 8135 – 15’  
8009 – 68’ 8017 – 56’  
Clearwater Pointe        
8134 – 40’ 8145 – 44’ 
8137 – 75’ 8149 – 67’ 
Forest Park Drive 
8125 – 10’ 
Lakeview Drive 
150’ (S-curve near 9 Hwy. entrance) 
Manor Drive 
5836 – 12’ 
Manor Lane 
5809 – 15’ 5813 – 25’ 5825 – 16’ 
5810 – 6’ 5817 – 45’ 5827 – 55’ 
5811 – 33’ 5823 – 20’ 5829 – 18’ 
Meadowlake 
5605 – 14’ 
Park Ridge Drive 
8103 – 23’ 
8123 – 50’ 
Parkview Drive     
7905 – 30’ 8011 – 70’ 8119 – 15’ Storm Drain Throat  
7907 – 100’ 8120 – 45’ 8114 – 15’ Storm Drain Throat  
Quail Ridge     
7717 – 23’ 
Timbercrest Place     
8013 – 20’ 8016 – 8’ Storm Drain Throat 
8015 – 40’  
Woodfield Court    
5905 – 51’ 
5906 – 58’ 
SUB-TOTAL for the Riss Lake Subdivision = 1,517’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013 Concrete Curb & Sidewalk 1 of 2 



ITEM 5F 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

2013 Concrete Curb & Sidewalk 2 of 2 

 
 
THE NATIONAL: 
N. National Drive 
6420 – 18’ 6619 – 15’     
6446 – 12’ 6715 – 28’ 
6520 – 10’ 7200 – 40’ 
Birkdale/Waters Edge 
220’ (Multiple locations around circle drive) 
SUB-TOTAL for the National Subdivision = 343’ 
 
RIVER HILLS: 
River Hills Drive   
10202 – 41’     
 
Miscellaneous Locations: 64’ 
 
CITY HALL: 
7” Thick Sidewalk replacement south of City Hall = 7 Square Yards 
 
SIDEWALK LOCATIONS: 
 

1. 8324 Lakeview Drive – 4’X16’ = 64 sq.ft. = 7.11 sq. yds. 
 

2. 8316 Lakeview Drive – 4’x20’ = 80 sq. ft. = 8.88 sq. yds. 
 

3. 5520 Sleepy Hollow – 4’x9’ = 36 sq. ft. = 4 sq. yds.  
 

4. 5th Street (West of Main, south side of street) – 4’x42’ = 168 sq. ft. = 18.67 sq. 
yds. 

 
5. 6th Street (Between Main and East Street) – 4’x33’ = 132 sq. ft. = 14.66 sq. 

yds. 
 

6. 9 Highway 501 – 11’X 5’ = 55 sq. ft. = 6.1 sq. yds.  



























































































ITEM 10A 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\10A - Downtown Master Plan\Summary - DMP - 10-15-13.doc 

CITY OF PARKVILLE 
Policy Report 

 
Date:  October 10, 2013 
 
Prepared By: 
 
Sean Ackerson 
Assistant City Administrator / 
Community Development Director 
 

Reviewed By: 
 
Lauren Palmer 
City Administrator 
 

ISSUE:   
Parkville Downtown Master Plan project updates and discussion.  
 
BACKGROUND:   
The City is working on a Parkville Downtown Master Plan to build consensus around a common 
vision for Downtown Parkville. The plan will blend public input with economic and engineering 
analysis to identify recommended strategies, policies and plans for enhancing downtown. The 
project consultant team will provide project updates and lead a discussion about where we are 
in the process, what they have heard so far, options and where we are headed. 
 
To date the project team, lead by Ochser, Hare & Hare, has facilitated three public workshops, 
hosted a two-day design charrette and collected input through the use of the 
LetsTalkParkville.com online forum.  The consultants have also met with representative 
business owners, property owners, residents, Park University staff, utility providers and other 
stakeholders and will continue to do so throughout the project. Through these forums and 
discussions, they are working to better understand the challenges facing downtown and the 
diversity of personal interests, objectives and preferences for addressing these challenges in an 
attempt to identify common goals and develop realistic strategies to meet them.   
 
Their presentation will focus on what they have heard to date, emerging themes and resulting 
initial concepts.  Results are grouped by major categories that will frame the plan: land use and 
housing; transportation and parking; infrastructure, utilities and flooding; parks, recreation, and 
natural resources; aesthetics and architecture; economics; and operations, function and 
regulation.  To date, a common direction bridges these categories – an overall desire to protect 
the character of downtown. 
 
After their presentation the consultants will lead a discussion to identify other issues, 
opportunities or concerns the Board may have, respond to emerging themes and preliminary 
concepts and verify the plan intent and how success will be measured. The timing of this 
meeting is critical. The plan is being produced through a very succinct schedule, and in order to 
meet related grant deadlines, the final plan must be adopted by the Board on November 19, 
2013. Another public meeting will be scheduled after the consultants receive Board input, but 
there will be very little time to compile comments and draft the final document. This is the best 
opportunity in the project schedule for meaningful input from the Mayor and Board.  
 
 BUDGET IMPACT:  
As this is a work session, there is no budget impact at this time. The project is possible through 
a Sustainable Communities Regional Planning Grant administered by the Mid-American 
Regional Council and local funds from the City of Parkville and Park University. 
 



ITEM 10A 
For 10-15-13 

Board of Aldermen Meeting 
 

M:\city clerk\10-15-2013 BoA Meeting\10A - Downtown Master Plan\Summary - DMP - 10-15-13.doc 

ALTERNATIVES:  
1. Provide direction to City Administration and the consultant team regarding the Downtown 

Master Plan.  
2. Table the discussion.  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide direction to City Administration regarding the Downtown Master Plan.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
As this is a discussion item, no motion is necessary.  
 
 


	Agenda
	4A. Minutes 10/1/13
	4B. Thousand Oaks Curb & Gutter 
	Policy Report

	4C. Thousand Oaks Improvements
	Policy Report

	4D. Accounts Payable
	Policy Report
	Report

	5A. Channel 2 Changes
	Policy Report
	Contract

	5B. Parkville Chamber Agreement
	Policy Report
	Agreement

	5C. Reaffirming Franchise Fee
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	RSMo 393.275

	5D. Townhomes at National Final Plat
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	Final Plats

	5E. Myers Rezoning Request
	Policy Report
	Ordinance
	Map
	Staff Analysis
	Application
	Notice of Public Hearing
	Area Map
	Notice of Public Hearing

	5F. 2013 Curb & Gutter & Sidewalk Project
	Policy Report
	Contract Agreement
	Scope of Work

	7E. Financial Report Month Ending 9/30/13
	10A. Dowtown Master Plan



